
DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
MEETING AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 16, 2021 

AMATUZIO CONFERENCE ROOM 
DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

         Click below to access meeting by Microsoft Teams: 

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DAA-November-Board-
Notice.pdf 

 I  *EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REVIEW 

Information Letter to DAA Directors. 

        II  *APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES & OTHER CONSENT AGENDA  
ITEMS 

A. Approval of October 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes.

  III  *DAA CASH DISBURSEMENTS 

A. Operating Cash Disbursement Sheets #38, #39 and #40, 2021.  Construction Fund
Disbursement Sheet #10 and #11, 2021

  IV  *CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Airport News:  October 6, 2021 thepointsguy.com “United CEO Talks Travel: Boeing 767s
Will Return to JFK, Future of 50-Seat Regional Jets Uncertain”, October 20, 2021 DLH
Press Release “A Reminder of the Full Details Regarding DLH’s New Sun Country
Service”, October 21, 2021 Reuters Business News “U.S. Airlines, White House Say
Vaccine Mandate Will Not Impact Holiday Travel”, October 22, 2021 USA Today
“SkyWest Cancels Hundreds of Flights: American, Delta, United, Alaska Airlines
Impacted”, and November 9, 2021 DLH Press Release “Duluth International Airport Air
Service Update”.

B. October 31, 2021, E-Mail from Monaco Air Foundation with Summary of October 2021
Activities.

C. November 9, 2021 Letter from DAA to FAA Regarding Duluth International Airport Air
Traffic Control Tower Siting Study Reimbursable Agreement.

D. Link for Part 150 Noise Study – Duluth International Airport -- Part 150 Noise Study - Duluth
International Airport (duluthairport.com)

E. Link for Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC) Minutes --
https://metroairports.org/Airport-Authority/Metropolitan-Airports-Commission/Public-
Meetings/Board-Meetings.aspx.

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DAA-November-Board-Notice.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DAA-November-Board-Notice.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/noise-study/
https://duluthairport.com/noise-study/
https://metroairports.org/Airport-Authority/Metropolitan-Airports-Commission/Public-Meetings/Board-Meetings.aspx
https://metroairports.org/Airport-Authority/Metropolitan-Airports-Commission/Public-Meetings/Board-Meetings.aspx


V  OPPORTUNITY FOR PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

VI  OLD BUSINESS 

None 

       VII  NEW BUSINESS  

A. Resolution to Approve the Recommendation of the Duluth International Airport’s Part
150 Noise Study -- https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DLH-Part-
150-DAA-Pre-meeting-Information-Packet-NCP-Recommendations.pdf

B. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2021-7 Between the Duluth Airport Authority and
SEH, Inc. for Taxiway A Phase 2 Preliminary Design.

C. Resolution to Approve Work Order 2021-8 Between the Duluth Airport Authority and
SEH, Inc. for Runway 3-21 Lighting and Signage Replacement Final Design.

D. Resolution to Approve Standard Internet Access Agreement and Authorize Executive
Director to Execute All Future Agreements.

E. Resolution to Approve the DYT 2022 Rates and Charges Addendum.
F. Resolution to Accept and Approve Duluth International Airport Maintenance and

Operations Grant Contract 1047446 and to Authorize the Duluth Airport Authority’s
President and Secretary to Execute the Contract and Any Amendments.

G. Resolution to Accept and Approve Sky Harbor Airport Maintenance and Operations
Grant Contract 1047447 and to Authorize the Duluth Airport Authority’s President and
Secretary to Execute the Contract and Any Amendments.

H. Resolution to Approve the Terminal Office Space Lease Agreement Between the Duluth
Airport Authority and SEH.

I. Discussion on Policy for Minimum Attendance for Board Members.
J. *August 2021 Financial Reports.
K. *September 2021 Accounts Receivables.
L. *September 2021 Airline, Cargo & Landline Statistics.

     VIII  DIRECTORS REPORTS 

Items annotated by an (*) are approved by consent and require no discussion or action unless questioned by a Director (In 
accordance with resolution passed by Directors on March 19, 2002). 

https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DLH-Part-150-DAA-Pre-meeting-Information-Packet-NCP-Recommendations.pdf
https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DLH-Part-150-DAA-Pre-meeting-Information-Packet-NCP-Recommendations.pdf


�� -� DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
_, .. 

Closer to everywhere. 

DATE: November 16, 2021 

TO: Duluth Airport Authority Board of Directors 

FROM: Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Executive Director's Review 

The following items will be briefed during the Executive Director's Review. If action is required of the 

DAA on any of these items, they will also appear on the agenda. If you have questions or desire 

additional information, please contact me and I will provide it at the DAA meeting. 

AIR SERVICE 

• Passenger statistics will be presented at the meeting

OPERATIONS/CONSTRUCTION/PLANNING 

• Planning

o ATFIL Reimbursable Agreement

o Master Plan Update

■ Final MPAC Meeting

o Part 150 Noise Study

■ Public Workshop Recap

• Construction

• Operations and Maintenance

o Terminal Holiday Decor

o Snow Removal Stakeholder Meeting(s)

o Public safety Manager Position Update

• Sky Harbor

o Building Area Master Plan Update

BUSINESS/PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

• Sun Country Update

• Hertz Car Rental Financial Update

FINANCIAL UPDATE 

• CRRSA & ARPA Concessionaire Relief Update

• Updated Bond Payment Schedule

• CFC Reconciliation

• 3rd Quarter Financial Update

Duluth International Airport 

Sky Harbor Airport 

4701 Grinden Drive 

Duluth, MN 55811 

Phone (218)727-2968 

Fax (218)727-2960 

daa@duluthairport.com 

www.duluthairport.com 





Execution Copy

AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMENT

befween

CITY OF DULUTH, MINNESOTA

and

DULUTH AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Dated as of November 3, 2021

Relating to:

City of Duluth
$2,845,000 Taxable General Obligation Airport Refunding Bonds

Series 2021D

M :,DOCS. 01J 3 I t00030 3: IllG I A 5 5 I I 003. DOCX



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I - Definitions and Rules of Construction ............2
Section 1.1 Definitions ......... ............2
Section 1.2 Severability........ ............3
Section 1.3 Governing Law .............. 3

ARTICLE II - Issuance of the Bonds ......... 3
Section 2.1 Agreement to Issue Bonds ........... 3

Section2.2 Refunding of 2012 Bonds... ......... 3
Section 2.3 Status of 2012 Loan and 2013 Loan ........... 3

ARTICLE III - Loan Terms and Conditions ............ 3
Section 3.1 The Loan .......... 3
Section 3.2 Repayment of Loan ....... 3

Section 3.3 Prepayment of Loan..... ................4

ARTICLE IV - Representations, Covenants and Warranties......... ......4
Section 4.1 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the City .......4
Section 4.2 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Authority.......... .................4

ARTICLE V - Events of Defau1t........... ..... 5

Section 5.1 Enforcement of Covenants .......... .............. 5
Section 5.2 Events of Defau1t........... ..............5
Section 5.3 Remedies ........... ............ 5
Section 5.4 Notices on Defau1t........... ............6

ARTICLE VI - Miscellaneous .....6
Section 6.1 Miscellaneous ................ 6
Section 6.2 Notices, etc. to City and Authority ............6

Exhibit A - Loan Repayment Schedule
Exhibit A-1 - Anticipated Payments from Passenger Facility Charge
Exhibit A-2 - Anticipated Payments from Customer Facilities Charge



THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") made as

ofNovember 3, 2021, by and between the CITY OF DULUTH, MINNESOTA, a home rule charter
city and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota (the "City'') and the DULUTH AIRPORT
AUTHORITY, an authority created and existing under the Laws of Minnesota 1969, Chapter 577,

as amended (the "Authority').

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Authority was created pursuant to Minnesota Laws 1969, Chapter 577, as

amended (the "Act"), to administer, promote, control, direct, manage and operate all airports of
the City. The Authority constructed a new terminal facility at the Duluth International Airport,
including a new parking ramp, access road and aprons in 2012 and 2013 (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the City has received grants from the State of Minnesota in the amount of
$ 16,600,000 for the Project, and the Authority has received grants for the Project from the Federal
Aviation Administration and TSA in the amount of $48,088,363 and from the State of Minnesota
in the amount of $4,500,000; and

WHEREAS, the Authority was in need of additional matching funds in the amount of
$7,650,000 for the Project, costs of issuance and capitalized interest; and

WHEREAS, at the request of the Authority, the City issued its Taxable General Obligation
Airport Bonds, Series 20128, in the amount of $7,650,000 (the "2012 Bonds") and loaned the
proceeds thereof to the Authority to provide the additional funds for the Project and provide for
the costs of issuance of the Bonds and capitalized interest; and

WHEREAS, the City loaned the proceeds of the 2012 Bonds to the Authority pursuant to
a Loan Agreement dated as of May 24, 2012 (the "2012 Loan Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Authority needed additional matching funds in the amount of $3,400,000
for completion of the parking ramp facilities portion of the Project, costs of issuance and

capitalized interest; and

WHEREAS, at the request of the Authority, the City issued its Taxable General Obligation
Airport Improvement Bonds, Series 20138 (the"20l3 Bonds"), in the amount of $3,400,000 and

loaned the proceeds thereof to provide additional funds to complete the Project and provide for the
costs of issuance and capitalized interest; and

WHEREAS, the City loaned the proceeds of the 2013 Bonds to the Authority pursuant to
aLoan Agreement dated December 18, 2013 (the"2013 Loan Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5, Subd.2(f) and Section 9 of the Act, the Authority has

the power and authority to obtain loans of money and enter into any agreement required in
connection therewith and to issue revenue bonds for the financing of a project and to pledge
revenues of the Authority for the payment thereof; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the City refinance the 2012 Bonds for debt
service savings and a reduction in the loan repayments under the 2012 Loan Agreement; and



WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable for the City and the Authority to enter into this

Agreement to amend and restate the 2012 Loan Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions of
the Loan (as hereinafter defined).

NOW, THEREFORE, in the joint and mutual exercise of their powers and in consideration

of mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto recite and agree as follows:

ARTICLE I - Definitions and Rules of Construction

Section 1.1 Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms in this

Agreement shall, for all purposes ofthis Agreement, have the meaning hereinafter specified, unless

the context clearly otherwise requires:

2012 Bonds: means the City of Duluth $7,650,000 Taxable General Obligation Airport
Improvement Bonds, Series 20128, dated May 24,2012, as the date of original issue.

2012 Loan: means the loan from the City to the Authority of the proceeds of the 2012
Bonds.

2013 Bonds: means the City of Duluth $3,400,000 Taxable General Obligation Airport
Improvement Bonds, Series 20138, dated December 18, 2013, as the date of original issue, and

City bonds issued to refund such Series 20138 Bonds.

2013 Loan: means the loan from the City to the Authority of the proceeds of the 2013

Bonds.

Bond Year: means the 12 months closing on Febru ary | of each year commencing with the

Bond Year closing on February 7,2022.

Bonds: means the City of Duluth $2,845,000 Taxable General Obligation Airport
Refunding Bonds, Series 2021D, dated November 3,2021, as the date of original issue, and City
bonds issued to refund such Series 2021D Bonds.

CFC: means the Customer Facilities Charge imposed by the Authority on car rentals

initiated at the Authority's facilities.

Debt Service Account: means the 2021D Refunding Bonds Debt Service Account
established for the Bonds within the City's debt service fund for general obligation bonds which
shall be used to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.

General Revenues: means revenues of the Authority generated from Authority operations
pursuant to the Act.

Loan Repayments: means the payments from the Authority to the City described in
Section 3 .2 hereof .

PFC: rneans the Passenger Facility Charge imposed by the Authority on airline tickets for
passengers utilizing the Project.



Tax Levy: means the ad valorem tax levy to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds
as set forth in the Bond Resolution.

Section 1.2 Severabitity. If any provision or application of this Agreement is held
unlawful or unenforceable in any respect, such illegality or unenforceability shall not affect other
provisions or applications which can be given effect, and this Agreement shall be construed as if
the unlawful or unenforceable provision or application had never been contained herein or
prescribed hereby. All representations and warranties contained in this Agreement shall survive
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the creation, payment and
performance of the Loan.

Section 1.3 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and consffued in
accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.

ARTICLE II - Issuance of the Bonds

Section 2.1 Agreement to Issue Bonds. The City agrees to issue the Bonds and lend
the proceeds to the Authority for refunding the 2012 Bonds and for the cost of issuance of the
Bonds.

Section 2.2 Refunding of 2012 Bonds. The City's and the Authority's plan of finance
for the payment and prepayment of the 2012 Bonds and the prepayment of the 2012 Loan is as

follows: (i) pursuant to the 2012 Loan Agreement, the Authority has deposited with the City
$570,415.63 for payment of the principal and interest due on the 2012 Bonds on Febru ary I , 2022;
(ii) the Authority has deposited with the City $590,000 from General Revenues of the Authority,
as a prepayment of a portion of the 2012 Loan and for deposit in the 2012 Bonds Debt Service
Account; and (iii) proceeds of the Bonds in the amount equal to $2,800,000 which together with
the $1,760,415.63 will be sufficient to pay, prepay and redeem the outstanding2012 Bonds and
the 20l2Loan on February 1,2022, and pay the cost of issuance of the Bonds.

Section 2.3 Status of 2012 Loan and 2013 Loan. As of the date hereof and after the
deposit of the amounts set forth in Section 2.2 hereof (i) the 2012 Loan shall be repaid and shall
no longer be outstanding, and the 2012 Loan Agreement shall be as amended and restated pursuant
to this Agreement; and (ii) the 2013 Loan shall remain outstanding, and the 2013 Loan Agreement
shall be in full force and effect.

ARTICLE III - Loan Terms and Conditions

Section 3.1 The Loan. The City agrees, upon the terms and conditions in this
Agreement, to lend to the Authority from the sale of the Bonds (the "Loan") 92,845,000, for the
uses of such proceeds as follows: (i) $2,800,000.00 for deposit into the 2012 Bonds Debt Service
Account shall be used for the refunding of the 2012 Bonds, as set forth in Section2.2; (ii) $360.41
shall be used for deposit in the Debt Service Account for the Bonds; (iii) $9,639.59 shall be used
for underwriter's discount; and (iv) $35,000.00 shall be used by the City for payment of costs of
issuance of the Bonds.

Section 3.2 Repayment of Loan. The Authority covenants and agrees to repay the
Loan, together with interest thereon, in Loan Repayments which in the aggregate shall be in an

aJ



amount sufficient to pay in full and when due, all of the principal of and interest on the Bonds. To
provide for the repayment of the Loan hereunder, until the principal of and interest on the Bonds
have been finally paid or provision for payment thereof shall have been made in accordance with
the Bond Resolution, the Authority covenants and agrees to pay to the City the following amounts
from PFC, CFC and to the extent needed, the General Revenues of the Authority:

(a) On each Decernber 1, colnmencing with December 1, 2021, the Authority
shall deposit in the Debt Service Account for the Bonds maintained by the City the amount
due on the Bonds during the next Bond Y ear:- and

(b) On demand of the City, any additional costs incurred by the City in
connection with the Bonds, including, but not limited to bond registrar fees and expenses.

The amount of the Loan Repayment due on each December 1 is set forth on Exhibit A
hereto, and the anticipated payments from PFC and CFC are set forth on Exhibits A-l and A-2,
respectively. If the funds generated by the PFC and CFC are ever insufficient to make such
scheduled payments, the Authority shall nevertheless make the full Loan Repayment from General
Revenues.

The Authority understands that the City has provided for the Tax Levy in the Bond
Resolution and it can only cancel the Tax Levy if and to the extent funds are on deposit in the Debt
Service Account prior to the date the City establishes its annual tax levy, which occurs on or about
December 15 of each year.

Section 3.3 Prepayment of Loan. The Authority may prepay the Loan with the written
consent of the City's chief administrative officer and in connection with the defeasance or
prepayment and redemption of the Bonds as permitted by the Bond Resolution.

ARTICLE IV - Representations, Covenants and \ilarranties

Section 4.1 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the City. The City
represents, covenants and warrants as follows:

(a) The City is a duly formed and validly existing municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State, governed by the Constitution and laws of the State and
its home rule charter.

(b) The officers ofthe City executing this Agreement have been duly authorized
to execute and deliver this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder pursuant to
the terms and provisions of a resolution of the Council.

Section 4.2 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Authority. The
Authority represents, covenants and warrants as follows:

(a) The Authority is a duly formed and validly existing authority of the City,
governed by the Constitution and laws of the State, including the Act.



(b) The laws of the State authorize the Authority to enter into this Agreement
and the transactions contemplated hereby, and to carry out its obligations hereunder, and

that the Loan is a revenue obligation within the meaning of Section 5, Subd. 2(f) and

Section 9 of the Act.

(c) The officers of the Authority executing this Agreement have been duly
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder,
pursuant to the terms and provisions of a resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Authority adopted on Septemb er 21,2021 .

(d) The Authority will to the fullest possible extent join with the City in
fulfilling the City's pledges set forth in the Bond Resolution.

(e) The Authority shall (i) keep the Project in good condition and repair, normal
depreciation excepted; (ii) from time to time replace any worn, broken or defective portion
thereof; (iii) promptly notiff the City of any material loss of or material damage to the
Project or of any material adverse change in the prospect of payment of any account,
instrument and other right to payment constituting PFC, CFC or General Revenues; and
(iv) at the Finance Director's office and Authority's chief executive office, keep accurate
and complete records pertaining to the Authority's financial condition, business and
property.

(f) The Authority shall exercise due care in the use, operation and maintenance
of the Project, and shall not install, use, operate or maintain the Project improperly,
carelessly, in violation of any state and federal law or for a purpose or in a manner contrary
to that contemplated by this Agreement or the Bond Resolution. The Authority shall
comply with all state and federal laws applicable to the use, possession, management and

operation of the Project, and if compliance with any such state and federal law requires
changes or additions to be made to the Project, such changes or additions shall be made by
the Authority at the Authority's expense.

(g) The Authority confirms its obligations under the 2013 Loan Agreement.

ARTICLE V - Events of Default

Section 5.1 Enforcement of Covenants. Upon an Event of Default hereunder, the non-
defaultin g party may perform or observe such agreement and take any action which the non-
defaultingparty may deem necessary or desirable to cure or correct such failure.

Section 5.2 Events of Default. The occurrence of any of the following events shall
constitute an "Event of Default": any default in the payment or perforrnance of any term of this
Agreement by either party which continues after 30-days' written notice by the other party.

Section 5.3 Remedies. Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and at any time
thereafter, the non-defaulting party may exercise and enforce any and all rights and remedies
available upon default under this Agreement and any other applicable agreements and laws.



Section 5.4 Notices on Default. If notice to the City or the Authority is required, such
notice shall be deemed reasonably and properly given if mailed by regular or certified mail, postage
prepaid, to the City or the Authority at the addresses stated in Section 6.2 of this Agreement at

least 10 days prior to the action described in such notice.

ARTICLE VI - Miscellaneous

Section 6.1 Miscellaneous. A carbon, photographic or other reproduction of this
Agreement is sufficient as a financing statement. This Agreement cannot be waived, modified,
amended, abridged, supplemented, terminated or discharged exceptby a writing duly executed by
the parties. A waiver shall be effective only when in writin g and in the specific instance and for
the specific purpose given. No delay or failure to act shall preclude the exercise or enforcement of
any of the rights or remedies. All rights and remedies of the parties shall be cumulative and may
be exercised singularly, concurrently or successively at the respective party's option, and the
exercise or enforcement of any one such right or remedy shall not be a condition to or bar the
exercise or enforcement of any other. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the City and the Authority and their respective successors and assigns and shall take
effect when executed by the City and the Authority.

Section 6.2 Notices, etc. to City and Authority. Any request, demand, authonzation,
direction, notice, consent, waiver or other document provided or permitted by this Agreement to
be communicated to or among the parties hereto shall be sufficient for every purpose hereunder if
made, given or furnished in writing, and served upon such party or mailed with postage prepaid
and addressed as follows:

If to the City: City of Duluth
Attention : Chief Administrative Officer
City Hall, Room 418
4l I West First Street
Duluth, MN 55802

Duluth Airport Authority
Attention : Executive Director
4701 Grinden Drive
Duluth, MN 5581I

If to the Authority:

(remainder of page left intentionally blank)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly atthonzed officers of the parties hereto affix their
signatures, all as of the date first written above.

CITY OF DULUTH, MINNESOTA
---""-- \/\(

;,

Countersi

City Attorney



DULUTH AIRP

,, (a
Its President

By

Approved as to form:

6
Assistant City Attorney



EXHIBIT A

Authority Loan Repayment Schedule

Pavment Date Bond Year
Payment Amount from

Authoritv to City
tzt0t t2021 02 I 02 I 2022 throtsh 02 I 0 I I 2023 $497,996.44*
1210112022 02 I 021 202 3 throu sh 02 I 0 I I 2024 495,352.50
1210112023 02 I 02 I 2024 tlr otsh 02 I 0 1 I 2025 487,767 .50
1210112024 02 I 021 202 5 throu sh 02 I 0 I I 2026 493,81 5.00
12t01t2025 02 I 02 I 2026 throush 02 I 0 I I 2027 493.590.00
t2toU2026 02 I 02 I 2027 tlroush 02 I 0 1 I 2028 497.350.00

*$360.41, the rounding amount as set forth in the Bond Resolution, is available to reduce the 12101/2021
Payment Amount.



EXHIBIT A-I

Anticipated Payments from Passenger Facility Charge

Pavment Date Bond Year
Payment Amount -

Passenser Facility Charee
t2l0U202t 02 I 02 I 2022 tlv oush 02 I 0 I I 2023 $310,695.1 I
12t0U2022 021 0212023 throu sh 021 0l 12024 310,905.00
tzt0t t2023 0210212024 tl' otash 02I0I12025 309,282j0
12t0U2024 021 021202 5 throu sh 021 0 I 12026 3ll ^77 5 .00
tzt0U202s 02 I 02 / 2026 tbr oush 02 I 0 I I 2027 308,47 5.00
12t0U2026 02 I 02 I 2027 thr oush 02 I 0 I I 2028 309,575.00



EXHIBIT A-2

Anticipated Payments from Customer Facilities Charge

Pavment Date Bond Year
Payment Amount -

Customer Facilitv Charse
t2t0t t2021 02 I 02 I 2022 tl'tr oush 02 I 0 I I 2023 $187.301.33
12t01t2022 021 0212023 throu sh 021 0l 12024 t84,447 .50
r2t0u2023 02 I 02 I 2024 thr olsh 02 I 0 I I 2025 178,485.00
t2l0t t2024 021 02 1202 5 throu sh 021 0 I 12026 t82,040.00
t210U2025 02 I 02 12026 throu sh 021 0 I 12027 185,1 15.00
t210U2026 02 I 02 I 2027 tlv oush 02 I 0 1 I 2028 187 ,77 5.00



DULUTH INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

DRAFT 

Travel Globally. Fly Locally. 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 

DATE: October 19, 2021 

PLACE: Amatuzio Conference Room 

Duluth International Airport, Duluth, MN 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kim Maki 
Jeff Anderson 
Don Mclsaac 
Kevin O'Brien 

DIRECTORS PARTICIPATING VIA ELECTRONICS 
MEANS: 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

Craig Fellman 

Todd Fedora 
Elissa Hansen 

Tom Werner, Executive Director 
Mary Ann Wittkop, Recording Secretary 
Steve Hanke, Assistant City Attorney 
Mark Papko, Director of Operations 
Natalie Peterson, Director of Communications & Marketing 

Jana Kayser, Business Development Manager 
Joelle Bodin, Finance & Administration Director 
Matt Stewart, SEH 

Bill King, Cirrus Design 
Jamie Riddle, Cin-us Design 
Scott Sannes, SEH 

OTHERS PARTICIPATING VIA ELECTRONICS 

MEANS: Kathy Leon, Confidential Bookkeeper 
Don Monaco, Monaco Air 
Mike Magni, Monaco Air 
Steve Cauchon, A vis 
Randine Lepage, A vis 
Eric Monson, Lake Superior Helicopters 

Vice President Maki welcomed everyone to the DAA October Board meeting and called it to 
order at 8:00 a.m. She performed roll call noting President Fellman, Dir. Fedora and Dir. 

Hansen as absent. Due to timing issues, she recommended a motion to change the agenda and 
move New Business to first on the agenda. Dir. O'Brien moved to have New Business items be 
first on the agenda. Dir. Mclsaac seconded. Roll call - all ayes. Motion carried. 

Duluth International Airport 

Sky Harbor Airport 

4701 Grinden Drive 

Duluth, MN 55811 

Phone (218) 727-2968 

Fax (218) 727-2960 

daa@duluthairport.com 

www.ouluthairport.com 











III











IV

































Link for packet --  https://duluthairport.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/DLH-Part-150-DAA-Pre-meeting-Information-Packet-NCP-Recommendations.pdf



VII B

































VII C



























Resolution to Approve Standard Internet Access Agreement and Authorize 
Executive Director to Execute All Future Agreements. 

Agreement Overview: 
This agreement will act as our Standard Internet Access Agreement with all our airport tenants 
who wish to purchase fiber internet through the DAA. 

Background: 

In the Fall of 2021, the Duluth Airport Authority contracted with Paul Bunyan to bring 
Fiber Internet into the Airport Terminal and Airport Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) Building.  
The main intent was to increase speed and reliability of the airport’s internet offering.  One of 
the ancillary benefits is that we would be able to re-sell this internet to our tenants to not only 
recapture initial install costs but also bring the same benefits to our tenants at a fraction of the 
price. 

This agreement will be modified to fit the customer’s needs in regard to speed, price, 
and term length.  The DAA has had expressed interest from multiple tenants that are on airport 
property. 

VII D



Internet Access Agreement 

Revised: November 2021 Confidential and Proprietary Page 1 of 4 

This Internet Access Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the Duluth Airport Authority (“DAA”) and 
_________________________, (“Customer”) as of the _____ day of ______, 2021, and describes the Services, the term of 
the Agreement, the prices for the Services, service level commitments, and any other Customer or Services specific terms 
and conditions. For purposes of this Agreement, the “Effective Date” is defined as the date upon which “DAA” first delivers 
Service. 

1. Services Description.  Internet Access provided via Fiber Connectivity to Airport Terminal located at 4701 Grinden
Drive, Duluth, MN  55811.  Internet Access of ______ with a single IP address.  Additional IP addresses can be purchased at
a rate of $24.95 per additional IP address per month.

Charges for other services are not included. This includes, but is not limited to cross-connection to other customers 
or carriers, colocation charges, etc. Access to the global internet at Quality of Service (“QoS”) support are not included. 
Service is provided not for resale for the use of the Customer and no other parties. 

Service will be provided in the DAA Airport Terminal building Demarc.  Wiring between Customer provided 
equipment and the building Demarc is available outside the scope of this Agreement.   

Customer is solely responsible for protection of Customer owned devices by providing a firewall with suitable 
threat management, filtering tools and manufacturer support.  In no event shall DAA, underlying carrier, or DAA’s IT 
provider be responsible for security or protection of Customer owned equipment. 

2. Services Term. The Services Term shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall continue for a term of
____________.  Once the Effective Date has passed, Customer must pay for the Services through the end of the Services
Term regardless of whether Customer is actually using the Services throughout the duration of such Term.

Following the expiration of the Services Term and failure of the parties to enter into any agreement for extension thereof, this 
Agreement and Customer’s license to use the Services, shall continue in effect on a month-to month basis upon the same terms 
and conditions specified herein, unless terminated by either Customer or “DAA” upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the 
other party.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer’s license to use Services shall, at all times, be contingent upon the 
election by “DAA” to continue to own or lease or operate the Airport Terminal, and such election to be at the sole discretion of 
“DAA”. 

3. Termination:
a) Termination for Cause. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for cause, provided written notice

specifying the cause for termination and requesting correction within thirty (30) days is given to the other
Party and such cause is not corrected within such thirty (30) day period.  Cause is any material breach of any
term of this Agreement, provided that in no event shall DAA be liable for the acts, omission or delays caused
by third party vendors to DAA (specifically including incumbent carriers) as long as DAA has made
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain necessary services on a timely basis.  Cause shall include but not be
limited to failure of Customer to pay charges when due, improper use of Services resulting in degradation or
blockage of the network, fraudulent use of the Services provided, or refusal of the Customer to abide by the
term of the Agreement.  Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, if DAA terminates for cause, Customer
shall pay as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the following:
a. if such termination is prior to installation of Services, damages shall be those actual and reasonable

expenses incurred by DAA through the date of termination;
b. If after activation of Services, Customer shall pay in addition to any charges for Services used, damages

equaling 80% of the last three months average billing multiplied by the number of months remaining
under the term of the Agreement, actual expenses incurred by DAA to initiate or terminate the Services,
any installation charges waived, and any discounts or credits granted.
If Customer terminates this Agreement for cause, Customer’s sole remedy, in addition to any service
credits that Customer may be entitled to, shall be to terminate this Agreement.  All reasonable costs and
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys fees, court costs and service charges, incurred by the
Party terminating for cause in accordance with this section, will be an expense of and charged to the



Internet Access Agreement 

Revised: November 2021 Confidential and Proprietary Page 2 of 4 

defaulting Party.  Remedies under this Agreement are exclusive and limited to those expressly stated in 
this Agreement. 

b) Termination without Cause.  Customer may also terminate the Agreement without cause, upon thirty (30) days
written notice; however, the Customer shall pay in addition to any charges for Services used, damages
equaling 80% of the last three months average billing multiplied by the number of months remaining under
the term of the Agreement, actual expenses incurred by DAA to initiate or terminate the Services, any
installation charges waived, and any discounts or credits granted.

4. Services Pricing.  For the Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, Customer shall pay “DAA” ____ per month
due on the 1st of each month for service that month commencing on the Effective Date of the Services Term and on the first
day of each calendar month thereafter during the Services Term.  Recurring charges for partial months shall be prorated.

(a) Payment Terms.  If payment for Services under this agreement is not received within fifteen (15) calendar days of the
due date DAA may suspend services provided under this agreement and a $50 reconnection fee shall be charged upon
restoration of services.

(b) Installation Fees. The Installation Fees are those one-time charges applicable to the initial installation of Services
(including, without limitation, installation of fiber, installation of equipment, configuration of equipment and any third-party
service fees).

(c) Build-Out Fees. Build-Out Fees are those one-time charges applicable to individual Services that are outside the
standard Service offering.  Build-Out Fees are payable in full by Customer to “DAA”, and no work will be performed by “DAA”, its 
authorized representatives or Customer to build out the Services prior to the completion and execution of all necessary
paperwork and receipt by “DAA” of all applicable Build-Out Fees. Build-Out Fees are not refundable in the event Customer
changes or cancels the Services.

5. Content of User Communications.  User communications, including any information stored on any devices
provided by DAA or its underlying carrier (Paul Bunyan Telephone Cooperative, “PBC”), are the sole responsibility of
Customer.  Customer agrees to use Service in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, court
orders and governmental agency orders.  Any change in rates, charges or regulations mandated by the legally constituted
authorities will act as a modification of any contract to that extent.  Customer agrees to use the Service in compliance with
any acceptable use policies, rules, or regulations that DAA or PBC may establish to protect the security, integrity, or
reliability of its systems.

6. Service Level Commitments.   Customer acknowledges that the Services are provided on an "AS IS" basis without
warranties of any kind, either expressed or implied, including but not limited to warranties of title or implied warranties of
merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. Under no circumstances, including negligence by DAA or any other
person or entity involved in providing the Services, shall DAA or its employees, agents, affiliates or subcontractors, be liable
to Customer, to any customer of Customer or to any user of the Services, or to any other person for any direct, indirect,
incidental, special or consequential damages, including but not limited to loss of profits, that may result from the inability to
use, omission, deletion, interruption or any other failure of performances or malfunction of the Services from any cause
whatsoever or from any breach of this Agreement. Customer’s sole remedy shall be a service credit for the period of time, if
any, that the Services were not in operation as required hereunder.

(a) Indemnity.  Customer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless DAA and its employees, agents, affiliates and
subcontractors of and from any and all obligations, liabilities, claims, damages and costs, including without
limitation reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to the content of user communications.

(b) Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any Service level commitments described in this
section shall not apply in any situations where delays or outages are caused or exacerbated by conditions beyond
the reasonable control of “DAA”, including, without limitation, power surges or outages; severe weather and
storms; natural disasters; strikes or other labor unrest; power failures; nuclear or other civil or military
emergencies; acts of legislative, judicial, executive or administrative authorities; Customer or third-party acts or
omissions; denied access; failure of Customer’s Equipment, facilities or applications; or force majeure.  In addition,



Internet Access Agreement 

Revised: November 2021 Confidential and Proprietary Page 3 of 4 

all maintenance related outages or delays performed during the Maintenance Window (as defined herein) and any 
other scheduled maintenance performed outside the Maintenance Window will be excluded from any 
measurement period hereunder.  Scheduled maintenance is defined as any maintenance activity performed 
outside the Maintenance Window of which Customer has received notice not less than twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance.  Customer’s account must be current and have no outstanding balance due in order for Customer to be 
eligible for any credits. Customer’s total credit in any contract year shall not exceed 30 days fees for the covered 
service type and credits may not be carried over to subsequent years.  Customer must request outage credits in 
writing within 30 calendar days of the outage.  Under no circumstances will any tests (for example PING tests) 
performed by Customer or any other party be recognized by DAA as a valid measurable criterion for outage 
determination for the purposes of establishing a service credit hereunder. 

(c) Internet Service.  Internet Access will be available not less than 99.99% of the time within any given calendar
month.  The scope of this SLC does not include, under any circumstances, any server on the Internet, Customer premise
equipment (“CPE”) or access service not provided by DAA. DAA will use commercially reasonable and good faith efforts to
ensure that eligible outages isolated to DAA’s Core Network affecting a Customer’s specific resource will be resolved as
soon as reasonably possible.  Failure to meet this objective may make Customer eligible for a service credit to be applied to
Customer’s next monthly invoice for Services.

Outage credits will be Customer’s sole remedy with respect to such an event. No outage credit will be issued and DAA will 
not be liable for any service outage caused by any planned maintenance or force majeure event described in section b 
above. No outage credit will be issued and DAA shall not be liable for any service interruption caused by Customer’s 
equipment or failure of Customer to comply with any requirement of this Agreement.  Outage credits are only issued for 
outages of the fiber provided to the DAA terminal, no outage credits are available for a failure of Internet access provided 
by PBC.  Customer must request outage credit in writing within 30 days of an outage.  Outage credits shall not exceed 100% 
of the monthly Services Pricing in any given month. 

Access Type Length of Outage Amount of Credit 

Internet  Access >1 hour and <= 4 hours 10% 

Internet  Access >4 hours and <= 8 hours 25% 

Internet  Access >8 hours and <= 24 hours 50% 

Internet  Access >24 hours 100% 

7. Technical Support.  Free technical support is provided by the DAA’s underlying carrier, Paul Bunyan Telephone
Cooperative, “PBC”.  DAA’s IT provider will provide maintenance and support of DAA owned equipment.  Maintenance and
support of Customer owned equipment is the sole responsibility of Customer.

8. Other Services/Customer Specific Terms and Conditions.

(a) Default.  In addition to the remedies available to “DAA” under this Agreement and all other remedies available at law
or in equity, if Customer fails to perform, or otherwise breaches, its obligations hereunder (including, without limitation, failing 
to pay for the Services) and Customer fails to remedy such breach within five (5) days after receipt of written notice thereof,
“DAA” shall have the right, immediately and without further notice, to discontinue performance hereunder and terminate this
Agreement.  Any failure of “DAA” to exercise its rights shall not constitute, or be construed by Customer as being, a waiver of
any past, present or future right or remedy.

If Customer commits an act of default with respect to the purchase of telecommunications services from “DAA”, which would 
entitle “DAA” to terminate its services to Customer, then “DAA” shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement,.     

(b) No Conflicts.  In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement or any
schedules thereto and those contained in any other Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control.



Internet Access Agreement 

Revised: November 2021 Confidential and Proprietary Page 4 of 4 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, all existing terms and conditions and any schedules thereto, not expressly amended by the 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and apply to the parties hereto. 

(c) No Assignment.  This contract may not be assigned to any third party without the written consent of DAA.

(d) Services Delivery.  Title to, and ownership of, all equipment and facilities DAA uses in supplying Services is and
remains with DAA. DAA will supply Services described in this Agreement in any manner and by means of any
equipment, software, and facilities DAA chooses. The method of providing of Services is a matter within DAA’s sole
discretion.

(e) Miscellaneous.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Minnesota.  In the event that a court,
government agency, or regulatory agency with proper jurisdiction determines that this Agreement or a provision of
this Agreement is unlawful, this Agreement, or that provision of the Agreement to the extent it is unlawful, shall
terminate.  If a provision of this Agreement is terminated but the parties can legally, commercially and practicably
continue without the terminated provision, the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this Addendum in duplicate on the Effective Date. 

Duluth Airport Authority     Customer 

By By 

Name Name 

Title Title 

By 

Name 

Title 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE 2022 RATES AND CHARGES 

ADDENDUM FOR DYT. 

Summary of changes: 

• Fuel Discounts:
o Provided these for tenants with lease agreements/operator agreements only

- not for the general public.
o Removed the pre-paid option, as this essentially leaves the DAA acting as

a bank causing some additional accounting measures and adjustments.

• Tie Downs:

o Tried to remove some of the administrative burden to Sky Harbor
Manager

o A payment option on an ipad will be set up

o Removed one tier of pricing
o At each tier you get a day/week/month discount once you hit the top end

of that tier for duration of stay

• Hangar 1 Aircraft Storage Fee:
o Added a price instead of referencing the agreement for pricing.

Agreements will be updated to reference approved rates similar to DLH.

• Updated contact information

Prepared by: Joelle Bodin 

VII  E





VII  F



m, 
DEPARTMENT OF

TRANSPORTATION 
MnDOT Contract No. 1047446 

ST ATE OF MINNESOTA 

AIRPORT MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION GRANT CONTRACT 

State Project Number (S.P.): A6901-MO22 
State Project Number (S.P.): A6901-MO23 

This contract is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Transportation ("State") and Duluth 
Airport Authority acting through its Airport Authority ("Recipient"). 

RECITALS 

1. Minnesota Statutes §§360.015 and 360.305 authorize State to provide financial assistance to airports for

maintenance and operation activities.

2. Recipient owns, operates, or controls an airport ("Airport") in the state system, and Recipient desires financial
assistance from the State for maintenance and operation activities for State Fiscal Year 2022 and State Fiscal Year
2023.

3. Recipient represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this contract to the
satisfaction of the State.

CONTRACT TERMS 

1. Term of Contract and Survival of Terms

1.1. Effective Date: This contract will be effective on July 1, 2021, or the date State obtains all required 
signatures under Minnesota Statutes § 16B.98, subdivision 5, whichever is later. As 
required by Minnesota Statutes § 16B.98 Subd. 7, no payments will be made to Recipient 
until this contract is fully executed. 

1.2. Expiration Date: This contract will expire on June 30, 2023. 

1.3. Survival of Terms: All clauses which impose obligations continuing in their nature and which must survive 
in order to give effect to their meaning will survive the expiration or termination of this 

contract, including, but not limited to, the following clauses: 9. Indemnification; 10. State 
Audits; 11. Government Data Practices; 13. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue; and 

14. Data Disclosure.

2. Recipient's Duties

2.1. Recipient will operate and maintain the Airport in a safe, serviceable manner for aeronautical purposes only for
the use and benefit of the public. 

2.2. The Recipient will keep the runway and the area around the lights mowed at the Airport. The grass must be 
mowed at least 7 feet beyond the lights, and the grass must not exceed 6 inches in height on the landing area. 
The areas around any navigational aids will be mowed and plowed to keep the area clear for access by a 
vehicle. 

2.3. If the Airport remains operational during the winter months, the Recipient will keep at least one runway, 
associated taxiway, and apron area cleared of snow and ice to the same priority as arterial roads. Snow banks 

must be limited in height so that aircraft wings, engines, and propellers will clear them. Landing strip markers 
and/or lights must remain visible. 

Page 1 of 6 













VII  G















VII  H

































VII  J









11/9/21, 10:57 AM Duluth A/R Aging Report 

Duluth Airport Authority 

Duluth A/R Aging Report 

As of November 8, 2021 

Filters: Transaction Type (equal to Invoice, Payment, Credit Memo) 
10/10/2021 - 9/10/2021 - 8/11/2021 - BEFORE 

CUSTOMER TRANSACTION TRANSACTION TRANSACTION DUE CURRENT 11/8/2021 10/9/2021 9/9/2021 8/11/2021 TOTAL 

TYPE DATE NUMBER DATE 
AGE (30) (60) (90) (>90)

Open Open Open Open Open Open 

Avis Rent A Car $0.00 $2,346.10 $0.00 $0.00 $24,122.63 $26,468.73 

Bellamy Bill Invoice 11/8/2021 8887 12/8/2021 $0.00 $591.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $591.90 

Bemidji Aviation Invoice 10/31/2021 8853 11/30/2021 9 $0.00 $868.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $868.50 

BKR Investments Invoice 11/1/2021 8799 12/1/2021 8 
OBA Duluth Pack 

$0.00 $225.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $225.00 

Brown, James Invoice 11/1/2021 8827 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $250.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $250.35 

Budget Rent A $0.00 $1,637.57 $0.00 $0.00 $21,405.95 $23,043.52 
Car 

Case, Ronald Jr. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($102.00) ($102.00) 

Chandler, Daniel Invoice 11/8/2021 8874 12/8/2021 $0.00 $153.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $153.00 

Childs, Matthew $0.00 $153.00 $229.50 $0.00 $0.00 $382.50 

Cirrus Design $0.00 $23,684.10 ($793.84) ($805.64) $0.00 $22,084.62 
Corporation 

City of Duluth $0.00 $1,668.72 $1,668.72 $0.00 $0.00 $3,337.44 

Globes, Nathan Invoice 11/8/2021 8876 12/8/2021 $0.00 $153.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $153.00 

Compudyne $0.00 $80.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $80.18 

Delta Airlines $0.00 $66,141.75 $0.00 $0.00 ($270.00) $65,871.75 

Divine Carriers $0.00 $126.33 $126.33 $126.33 $126.33 $505.32 

Duluth Hangar, $0.00 $765.35 $765.35 $0.00 $0.00 $1,530.70 
LLC 

Enterprise $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $91,975.42 $91,975.42 
Leasing Company 

FEMA Invoice 10/19/2021 8788 11/18/2021 21 $0.00 $9,775.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,775.33 

General Services $0.00 $5,298.61 ($61.20) $0.00 $0.00 $5,237.41 
Administration 

Goritchan Boris $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $879.00 $879.00 

Grimsbo, Gerald Invoice 9/14/2021 8684 10/14/2021 56 $0.00 $0.00 $367.00 $0.00 $0.00 $367.00 

GSSC Invoice 7/28/2021 8485 8/27/2021 104 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $115.00 $115.00 

Hagberg, Rick Invoice 11/1/2021 8835 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $193.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $193.35 

Hall John Invoice 11/1/2021 8801 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $277.39 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $277.39 

Hatfield, Dan Invoice 11/1/2021 8831 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $193.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $193.35 

Hermantown $0.00 $656.21 $656.21 $656.21 $0.00 $1,968.63 
Hydraulics 

Hertz-Overland $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,417.11 $4,417.11 
West 

Hillman Colin Invoice 11/1/2021 8844 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $240.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $240.00 

Hydro Solutions, Invoice 11/1/2021 8802 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $3,466.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,466.75 
Inc. 

Johnson, Richard Invoice 11/1/2021 8828 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $443.70 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $443.70 

Johnston, Paul Invoice 11/1/2021 8839 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $193.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $193.35 

Lake Country Air, $0.00 $6,606.16 $0.00 $0.00 $946.59 $7,552.75 
LLC 

Lake Superior $0.00 $1,537.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,537.82 
Helicopters 

Larsen, Shane Invoice 9/29/2021 8705 10/29/2021 41 $0.00 $0.00 $434.86 $0.00 $0.00 $434.86 

Love Creamery $0.00 $30.00 $30.00 $0.00 $0.00 $60.00 

Luck, Rick $0.00 $175.94 $0.00 $269.26 $0.00 $445.20 

Lyft, Inc. Invoice 9/30/2021 8848 10/30/2021 40 $0.00 $0.00 $333.00 $0.00 $0.00 $333.00 

Magaard, Diana Invoice 1/15/2021 7785 2/14/2021 298 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 

Malachi Israel $0.00 $590.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $590.43 

Manney, Sarah Invoice 11/8/2021 8894 12/8/2021 $0.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 

Mark Marino $0.00 ($850.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($850.00) 

Messerer Jon $0.00 $104.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.48 $104.90 

Miner's Outdoor Payment 1/19/2021 6925 1/19/2021 294 
Adventures, LLC 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($15.70) ($15.70) 

Minnesota Air Invoice 11/8/2021 8867 12/8/2021 $0.00 $655.74 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $655.74 
National Guard 

Minnesota Invoice 9/21/2021 8772 10/21/2021 49 $0.00 $0.00 $33,311.00 $0.00 $0.00 $33,311.00 
Department of 
Transportation 

Minnesota Power Invoice 11/1/2021 8806 12/1/2021 8 $0.00 $446.18 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $446.18 

Monaco Air $0.00 $6,108.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,108.22 
Duluth 

https://4039887.app.netsuite.com/app/reporting/reportrunner.nl?cr=316&reload=T&whence= 1/2 

VII  K





ENPLANEMENTS 

MONTH 2019 2020 2021 

JAN 9,589 12,946 5,183 

FEB 8,663 12,774 5,182 

MAR 12,498 7,703 7,169 

APR 11,429 577 6,758 

MAY 12,376 849 9,519 

JUN 14,727 1,494 9,403 

JUL 16,096 3,121 11,778 

AUG 16,868 5,727 12,727 

SEP 15,070 5,664 11,820 

OCT 15,224 5,652 11,285 

NOV 12,461 4,418 -

DEC 12,850 4,449 -

TOTAL 157,851 65,374 90,824 

TOTALS WITH CHARTER INCLUDED 

Enplanements 

Month 2019 2020 2021 

JAN 9,876 13,252 5,183 

FEB 8,663 12,950 5,214 

MAR 12,818 7,703 7,204 

APR 11,666 577 6,758 

MAY 12,687 849 9,519 

JUN 14,895 1,494 9,403 

JUL 16,390 3,121 11,778 

AUG 16,982 5,727 12,727 

SEP 15,400 5,664 11,820 

OCT 15,224 5,823 11,498 

NOV 12,761 4,508 -

DEC 12,850 4,449 -

Total 160,212 66,117 91,104 

DULUTH AIRLINE STATISTICS 

ALL SCHEDULED AIRLINES 

DEPLANEMENTS TOTAL PASSENGERS 

2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 

8,729 11,437 4,677 18,318 24,383 

8,229 12,337 5,041 16,892 25,111 

12,124 8,842 6,544 24,622 16,545 

11,631 666 7,055 23,060 1,243 

12,744 638 10,262 25,120 1,487 

15,576 1,526 9,598 30,303 3,020 

16,016 3,327 11,791 32,112 6,448 

16,846 5,754 12,128 33,714 11,481 

13,676 5,666 11,207 28,746 11,330 

14,568 5,059 10,305 29,792 10,711 

12,341 4,349 - 24,802 8,767 

13,649 4,533 - 26,499 8,982 

156,129 64,134 88,608 313,980 129,508 

Deplanements 

2019 2020 2021 Total 

9,016 11,743 4,677 9,860 

8,229 12,513 5,073 10,287 

12,444 8,842 6,579 13,783 

11,631 666 7,055 13,813 

13,234 638 10,262 19,781 

15,744 1,526 9,598 19,001 

16,310 3,327 11,791 23,569 

17,161 5,754 12,128 24,855 

14,006 5,666 11,207 23,027 

14,568 5,230 10,478 21,976 

12,641 4,439 - -

13,649 4,533 - -

158,633 64,877 88,848 179,952 

2020/2021 

PASS. INCREASE/DECREASE 

2021 ORIG % DIFF TOTAL ¾DIFF 

9,860 (7,763) (59.96) (14,523) (59.56) 

10,223 (7,592) (59.43) (14,888) (59.29) 

13,713 (534) (6.93) (2,832) (17.12) 

13,813 6,181 1,071.23 12,570 1,011.26 

19,781 8,670 1,021.20 18,294 1,230.26 

19,001 7,909 529.38 15,981 529.17 

23,569 8,657 277.38 17,121 265.52 

24,855 7,000 122.23 13,374 116.49 

23,027 6,156 108.69 11,697 103.24 

21,590 5,633 99.66 10,879 101.57 
-

-

179,432 34,317 310.34 67,673 322.15 

VII  L












	Agenda
	I   Executive Directors Review
	II   Minutes
	III   Cash Disbursements
	IV   Correspondence
	VII New Business A  / Part 150 Noise Study
	VII  B / WO 2021-7
	VII  C / WO 2021-8
	VII  D / Internet Use
	VII  E / DYT Rates & Charges
	VII  F / DLH M&O
	VII  G / DYT M&O
	VII  H / Terminal Office Space
	VII  J / Financials
	VII  K / Accounts Receivables
	VII  L / Statistics



